
 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

                                                              W e d n e s d a y ,  J a nua r y 15, 2025, a t  6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 



 

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held February 19, 2025 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 

Agenda: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 @ 6:00pm 
 

 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda 
5. Public & Guest Comments 
6. Executive Session: None 
7. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance No. 2; 

Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing an Effective Date 
(Pgs.1-5) 

 
STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

8. Financial and Grant Reports (November) (Pgs.6-31) 
9. Service Performance Reports (November) (Pgs.32-40) 

10. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (January) (Pg.41-43) 
11. NW Rides Brokerage  
12. General Managers Report (Pgs.44-45) 

a. Administration/Coordination 
b. Planning/Development 
c. Grant Funding 
d. Facility/Property Management 
e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

13. Miscellaneous 
 
CONSENT 
14. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting (Pgs.46-51) 
15. Motion to Approve November 2024 Financial Statements  

 
ACTION ITEMS 
16. Resolution 25-01 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute ODOT Section 5304 Grant 

Agreement No. 35707 (Pgs. 52-73) 
17. Resolution 25-02 Adopting the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan and Authorizing the 

General Manager to Submit the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan Application (Pgs. 
74-81) 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
18. Board Vacancy – Position 1 
19. Staff Comments 
20. Board of Directors Comments 
21. Adjournment 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS 

 
 
  

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782   Meeting ID: 874 7801 7969 
To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87478017969 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/


BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Re-establishing and Amending ) 
Ordinance No. 2;  ) 
Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, ) 
Categories, and Rates; and ) ORDINANCE NO.  2 
Establishing an Effective Date ) 

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) is an Oregon 
transportation district organized under ORS Chapter 267, with the power to fix and 
collect charges for the use of its system; and 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that in order to make its transportation services 
economically sustainable, it needs to update its fare zones, categories, and rates 
(collectively, the “Fare Structure”); and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”) adopted Ordinance No. 2 with an 
effective date of March 1, 2013, establishing District fare zones and fare categories; and 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 21-02 with an effective date of July 1, 
2021, repealing Ordinance No. 2 and establishing District fare zones and fare 
categories; and 

WHEREAS, the Fare Structure for transportation services shall be established by the 
Board from time to time by ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the District conducted an evaluation of its Fare Structure  on May 20, 2021, 
following a public notice and public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the District discontinued intercity 70X services between Salem and Grande 
Ronde on June 23, 2023, and discontinued intercity 60X services between Lincon City 
and Salem on December 10, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to repeal Ordinance No. 21-
02 and to re-adopt and amend Ordinance No. 2 to accomplish the District’s goals of 
making fares simpler and more affordable and enhancing the ability of people to travel 
to jobs, shopping, and other destinations within the District’s system and to update the 
Fare Structure.  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED: 

As of the effective date of this Ordinance, Ordinance No. 21-02 and all prior resolutions, 
policies, and motions relating to the District’s Fare Structure are hereby repealed. 

That within seven days after adoption of this ordinance, the enrolled ordinance shall be 
filed in the records of the District, and a certified copy shall be filed with the Tillamook 
County Clerk. 

1



Section 1: Transportation Fare Zones 

For the purposes of determining fare charges for transportation services: 
A. The District shall consist of, and operate as a single fare zone for transportation
services within Tillamook County; between Tillamook County and Lincoln County and
between Tillamook County and Clatsop County; and for intercity transportation services
between Tillamook and downtown Portland.

Section 2: Fare Categories 

TCTD hereby establishes the following Fare Categories for transportation services 
provided by or through the District.  

Category Description 

Full Fare Passengers who do not fall under any other fare category. 
Child Fare Passengers up to 12 years of age (inclusive) 
Youth Fare Passengers 13 years of age up to 18 years of age (inclusive) 
Reduced Fare Passengers age 60+ or who qualify as disabled, according to criteria of TCTD reduced 

fare policy. 
Special Program Fare Passengers using transportation service provided under a special program offered by, 

through or on behalf of TCTD. 

2



Section 3: Fare Rates 

The fares for each Fare Category are hereby established as the Fares listed on 
Attachment A, “TCTD Fare Rates by Passenger Category,” which is incorporated by this 
reference. 

Section 4: Modifications to Fare Rates 

The fares for each Fare Category in Attachment A may be modified by Resolution of the 
District Board. 
Section 5: Effective Date 
The effective date of Ordinance No. 2 will be February 19, 2025 

Passed and adopted by the District Board this 19th day of February 2025 and signed by 
the Board Chair and Board Clerk in authentication of its passage. 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

First Reading:  December 18, 2024 
Board Chair, Mary Johnson 

Second Reading:  January 15, 2025 
Attest: 

Effective Date:  February 19, 2025 

Board Clerk, Keri Brown 

3



     ATTACHMENT A 
TCTD Fare Structure and Rates by Passenger Category 

 

  Full Fare Reduced 
Fare 

Child/Youth 
Fare* 

Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes)  
Single Fare (per route) $1.00 $0.50 Free 
Day Pass $3.00 $1.50 Free 
Monthly Pass $30.00 $20.00 Free 
Single Fare with Deviation $2.00 $1.50 N/A 
Deviation 10-Trip Pass $10.00 N/A N/A 
Dial-A-Ride    

Single Fare up to 5 miles $4.00 $2.00 $2.00 
Per additional mile beyond 5 
miles $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 

Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner) 
Single Fare $15.00 N/A $7.50 
10-Trip Pass $120.00 N/A $60.00 
Special Programs    

3-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $25.00 N/A N/A 
7-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $30.00 N/A N/A 

* The first two children age 0-12 are free on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes with a paying adult. 
 
 
Child/Youth Fare and Reduced Fare Criteria 
Children and youth age 0-18 are not charged a fare for fixed-route trips within Tillamook 
County (including connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach), not including 
deviation trips, which are charged a reduced fare. 
The first two children age 0-12 are not charged a fare when accompanied by a paying 
adult. Additional children age 0-12, and youth (age 13-18), are eligible for a reduced 
fare on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes. 
Youth age 13-18 may be asked to show a middle or high school student identification 
card (or alternative) for age verification. 
Passengers who have a long or short-term disability or are 60 years of age or older, are 
eligible for the Reduced Fare.  
TCTD Employees, Board Members and State of Oregon Public Transit Employees 
TCTD employees, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes 
free with District authorized identification. Employees who have retired after five (5) 
years or more in good standing are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes free with 
District authorized identification. 
TCTD Board Members, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed 
routes free with District authorized identification.  TCTD Board Members who have 
served on the board for at least one (1) year are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes 
for free with District authorized identification.  Board Members removed from office by 

4



recall or convicted of a crime related to their service on the Board are not eligible for this 
benefit. 
Employees of public transit agencies in the State of Oregon are eligible to ride fixed 
route services free with valid identification issued by such an agency. 
Special Programs 
Group Pass Programs will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis with public or private 
entities. 
Veterans may ride all deviated fixed routes free of charge on Veterans Day with a valid 
VA ID Card. 

Dial-A-Ride to Fixed Route Transfers 

In-county Dial-A-Ride passengers requesting rides for the purpose of transfer onto any 
fixed route services will be provided such transportation free of charge, provided that the 
transfer is to the nearest fixed route bus stop. Transfers to any other location within the 
District’s system will be provided at standard Dial-A-Ride rates. 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



TCTD Operations
Statistics & 
Performance
November 2024

32



YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

34028

3288 3575

42235

3890 4259

IN-COUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

Nov-24 Nov-23

33



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

15971

1112

10943

4815

1187 0

18864

1804

11331

6225

1944 2290

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE

Nov-24 Nov-23

34



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

1548

2027

2891

1368

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

Nov-24 Nov-25

35



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

328

801

235

3390

315
625

1337

461

1368

631

RIDE CONNECTION TILLAMOOK BAY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK

Nov-24 Nov-23

36



TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP
November 2024  &  November 2023

7403

5743

631

460

749

549

2023

2024

In-County Inter-City DAR

37



38



39



40



Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting 
January 10, 2025 | 10:00 am—12:00 pm 

HYBRID 
Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00- 
10:05a  Introductions Cynda Bruce 

10:05 -
10:10a 

 Consent Calendar (Action Item) 
November & December Meeting Minutes 
Financial Report   

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:10- 
10:30a 

NWOTA Standing Items 
Emissions/Ridership Tracking 
Website Updates: 

- Swiftly Updates
- Accessibility Updates

Sarah Lu Heath 

10:30- 
11:00a E-Bike Policy Discussion All 

11:00-
11:10a Bus Stop Project Update Brian Vitulli 

11:10- 
11:30a Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study Brian Vitulli/ 

Sarah Lu Heath 

11:30- 
11:45 OCVA Service Pilot Proposal Update All 

11:45- 
11:50a New Business All 

11:50a- 
12:00p Member Updates All 

Attachments: 
November & December Meeting Minutes 
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking  

Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities.  If 
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

41

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2024 

Hybrid meeting called to order at 10:06am. 

In attendance:        Cynda Bruce, John Dreeszen, Cody Franz, Sarah Lu Heath, Craig Johnston, Arla 
Miller, and Chris Wheatley.  

Consent Calendar:    Alliance reviewed carbon emissions tracking and the minutes. Financials 
were not available for review. Motion to accept the consent calendar made by John Dreeszen, 
seconded by Craig Johnston, and passed unanimously.  

Standing Items:    Website report was reviewed and next steps for the work plan discussed. MAC 
provided two methods of improving the accessibility of the NWConnector website. The group 
requested that MAC developers attend the next meeting to discuss the options.  

The group also reviewed status of Swiftly APIs to update real-time bus tracking on the 
NWConnector website. LAT is currently unable to access their Swiftly data. SETD was able to 
provide their data to MAC.   

E-Bike Policy Discussion:   The group reviewed several examples of e-bike policies. Policies that
prioritize people and driver discretion were preferred. The next step is to have agencies provide
weight limits and tire size requirements for external bike racks.

Bus Stop Project:  Work is underway to prepare the request for proposals. 

Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study: Agencies are working on providing requested materials 
to Gannett Fleming consultants.  

Other Business: SETD and TCTD shared information on the Oregon Coast Visitors Association plan 
to begin offering redundant services during the summertime on the North Coast. Both agencies are 
concerned about confusion among passengers and costs and operational concerns of sharing 
transit centers. Cynda Bruce added concerns regarding decreased Federal funding for year-round 
public transit services if summer ridership is lost to competing lines.  

John Dreeszen made a motion for NWOTA to submit a letter responding to OCVA’s proposal, Cynda 
Bruce seconded the motion, it passed unanimously.  

Member Updates:   

Columbia County Rider received three new buses. 

Lincoln County Transit is working on STIF quarterlies and will embark on their Drug and Alcohol 
review soon.  

Sunset Empire Transit District shared information about ODOT’s inability to pre-award FTA funds, 
causing a shift in their cash flow. This will affect all agencies, who should plan to have larger cash 
contingencies on hand to manage this change in funding process.   

Meeting was adjourned at 12:11pm. 

42



NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2024 

Hybrid meeting called to order at 10:10am. 

In attendance:  Cynda Bruce, John Dreeszen, Lars Faye, Cody Franz, Sarah Lu Heath, Logan 
Hoffman, Craig Johnston, Arla Miller, Charlene Pech, Brian Vitulli, and Chris Wheatley. 

Standing Items:      Standing items were moved up in the agenda to accommodate Lars Faye and 
Logan Hoffman, guests from MAC Collective. Faye and Hoffman discussed the process of testing 
websites for accessibility against state, national, and international standards. MAC created and 
displayed two proposed pathways to improve website accessibility. It was decided to go with the 
design that most closely resembles existing graphic and branding designs. MAC will begin making 
those changes immediately.  

The Alliance also discussed efforts to achieve real-time tracking of transit vehicles on the 
nwconnector.org website. There is still a disconnect with Swiftly and it was decided that Sarah Lu 
Heath would set up a meeting with necessary parties.  

It was also noted that 60x service between Lincoln City and Salem has been reinstated by another 
provider and should be added to the NWConnector map.  

Consent Calendar:      While reviewing the financial statement, it was noticed that the budget had 
not been updated from the last fiscal year. Corrected financial statements will be provided at the 
next meeting.  

E-Bike Policy Discussion:   The item was removed from the agenda.

Bus Stop Project:  Work is underway to prepare the request for qualifications. 

Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study: Agencies are working on providing requested materials 
to Gannett Fleming consultants. The group spent a significant amount of time working on a 
questionnaire for the study.  

Other Business:  None. 

Member Updates:  TCTD hired five new drivers. They are also working to improve utilization of their 
propane fueling station operations. 

The group reviewed the OTA Board’s approved action regarding recommended revisions to the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund tax rate and its distribution that will be addressed 
during the 2025 Legislative Session. 

Meeting was adjourned at 1:24pm. 

43



DATE: January 15, 2025 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

Administration/Coordination 

• Continuing to serve on the Maintenance and Operations Workgroup of the Oregon
Legislature’s Joint Committee on Transportation. The group is continuing pre-session
discussions that work toward addressing the pressing need for stable funding tools and
multimodal investment to maintain and improve the transportation system and ensure safety
and accessibility for all Oregonians. Final Workgroup meeting is scheduled for January 16.

• Attended NWOTA meeting on January 10.
• Asked by ODOT to serve on the partner interview panel to select a permanent Administrator

for the Public Transportation Division. The Administrator serving has been on a one-year
internal rotation, and the Department wishes to fill this vital position permanently. The
interview panel met on Friday, December 20, 2024 and made their recommendation. The
selected Administrator started Monday, January 6, 2025.

• Attended ODOT’s Region 2 Transit Roundtable Meeting on January 14.
• Attended OTA Board of Directors meeting on January 14.
• Held TCTD Transportation Advisory Committee meetings on January 8th and 14th.

Planning & Development 

• Clean Bus Planning Award Program project kick-off meeting was held on October 31st

regarding the ZEV Feasibility Study. The first project coordination meeting was held on
December 9. The project is currently in the data collection phase, as NWOTA entities are
providing fleet, operational, procurement, planning, grant, workforce, and facilities-related
information.

• The phase 1 Request for Qualifications is nearly complete for the NWOTA Bus Stop Access
Project. Phase 1 tasks include final design and obtaining permits for the three locations
(Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a NEPA analysis of the Hebo location. The District will then
seek responses from three qualified firms and proceed with contracting.

44



Grant Funding 

• Submitted two, ODOT STIF-Discretionary grant applications for 1) New fire alarm system for
administration building and vehicle maintenance facility, and 2) Shelters for enhanced bus
stop infrastructure constructed as part of the U.S. 101 upgrade project in Garibaldi. Oregon
Transportation Commission approval is scheduled for March 3, 2025.

• Submitted Federal Formula (5310 & 5311) grant applications to ODOT on November 20, 2024.
Funding will be used for preventive maintenance, capital vehicle purchases, and operations.
Marie Mills Center, Inc. submitted for 5310 funds through the District as the lead agency.
Their award will be used for preventive maintenance of their fleet.

• In response to ODOT’s 2024-2026 Mid-Cycle Discretionary Grant Solicitation, the District was
awarded Section 5304 funding in the amount of $180,000 ($225,000 total project cost) to
update the District’s Transit Development Plan. The grant period would be through December
31, 2026. (The Board of Directors will consider approval of the grant agreement under Action
Items.)

• Finalizing the FY 2025-2027 Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula
Funding Plan. Applications are due to ODOT on January 16, 2025 to cover the period July 1,
2025 through June 30, 2027. (The Board of Directors will consider approval of this Plan under
Action Items.)

Facility/Property Management 

• Remaining renovation tasks are being completed at the Transit Center.
• Vehicle Storage Facility security gate repaired on January 8. (Board approved contract at

December 2024 meeting.)
• ADA controller to be installed on January 16 at the Transit Center to allow the westside doors

to be fully ADA accessible. (Board approved contract at December 2024 meeting.)
• Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

• New DAR vehicle #210 was delivered on November 27.
• Request for Quotes for four new Category B buses issued on January 2, 2025. Vendor

responses due on January 24, 2025.
• Two new category B buses will enter production once all components are ordered. These

vehicles are long overdue, but progress is being made.
• Two Category C trolley-replica buses are in the procurement process.
• Two new Category E1 DAR vans are in the procurement process.

45



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Wednesday, December 18, 2024 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order:   Secretary Bean called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Gary Hanenkrat, Director  
Marni Johnston, Treasurer 
Jonathan Bean, Secretary 
Thomas Fiorelli, Director (via Zoom) 

Absent 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair 
Linda Adler, Vice Chair 

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor 
Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager 
Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent 
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 

Guest  
John Cline, Citizen 
Brad Bingenheimer, Auditor from Singer Lewak 
San SunOwen, Care Oregon 
Tyler Hellner 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Added Item 7: Audit presentation; added
Item 19: Motion to Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor Proposal and
Execute Repair to Vehicle Storage Facility Security Gate; added Item 20: Motion to
Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor Proposal and Execute Installation
of Transit Center ADA Automatic Door Operator.

5. Public & Guest Comments: John Cline stated that he thought last year was bad but
now we must use attorneys to solve problems. Everyone is having to do multiple jobs,
not just their own. Just wanting to let the Board know that we are still having a
challenging time keeping drivers, it’s like the work ethic is gone from people, they don’t
want to work.

46



6. Executive Session: None.

7. Audit Presentation: Brad Bingenheimer, from our audit firm, Singer Lewak,
presented the Audit for year ending June 30, 2023.

Director Johnston asked FS Bond were most of the deficiencies identified from the
audit addressed and will there be a difference for the next one. FS Bond stated that
we are already almost seven months into the new fiscal year and hopefully it will be
less. Will possibly take up to three years to clean up the previous years.

Director Fiorelli thanked FS Bond for the work she was doing and suggested that
SDAO handbook would possibly have a Financial Policy that could help for
procedures. What FS Bond has done so far has come a long way.

Director Johnston said that she agreed with Director Fiorelli.

8. First Reading of Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance No.
2; Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing an
Effective Date.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

9. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the September 2024 and October
2024 financials included in the Board packet pages 6-56.

10. Service Measure Performance Report: OS Reed provided service statistics and
performance measures for the month of October 2024 and are included in the Board
packet pages 57-65.

11. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli provided the following updates
included in the Board packet pages 67-68. GM Vitulli discussed his concerns with
the OCVA’s Service Pilot Proposal and how they are wanting to create a visitor-
oriented service for summer 2025. How it could impact TCTD and the community
regarding what TCTD already provides. GM Vitulli stated that it would possibly
operate from Memorial Day to Labor Day.

Director Hanenkrat asked if there was a need for this service. Not a lot of demand for
this service, so how would they justify the need.

Director Fiorelli said that the Oregon Coast Visitor Association states on their
website that they want to continue the growth to the Oregon Coast, increasing
lodging with new transportation options. He stated maybe to talk to regional partners
stakeholders for a specific letter to help with this.

47



Director Johnston wondered if it would be more beneficial to collaborate and contract 
with all the transportation districts that it could impact, rather than competing against 
them. GM Vitulli stated that is precisely what he recommended to OCVA when he 
was asked for comments on their proposed service. 

12. NW Rides Brokerage: BM Deputy provided the following updates:
a. Reviewed ride statistics for November 2024.
b. Provided miles driven: 90687. Just for a mental picture Santa Claus travels

99,500 miles on Christmas Eve.
c. Mileage reimbursement trips provided 61,152 miles driven. Volunteers drove

22,033.
d. San SunOwen from Care Oregon shared information regarding 2025

CareOregon Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation
Agreement.

13. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in
Board packet pages 67-68 (see GM Report in packet for details):

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

14. Miscellaneous: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR 
15. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve the Minutes of November 20, 2024,

Regular Board Meeting. Seconded by Director Bean.
Motion Passed 

By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 
Vice Chair Adler and 

Chair Johnson absent. 

16. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve September & October Financial
Statements. Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

17. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve TCTD 2025 Annual Board Meeting
Schedule. Seconded by Director Bean.

48



Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

18. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Authorize the General Manager to Execute 2025
CareOregon Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation Agreement.
Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

19. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor
Proposal and Execute Repair of Vehicle Storage Facility Security Gate. Seconded
by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

20. Motion to Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor Proposal and Execute
Installation of Transit Center ADA Automatic Door Operator.

a. Director Hanenkrat asked if the door would be on the front side or the back
facing the courthouse?

b. GM Vitulli stated that it would be on the westside of the Transit Center facing
the platform and that a sign will be placed on the other door to let people
know where to go.

c. Director Bean mentioned how ADA is accessible for everyone.

Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor 
Proposal and Execute Installation of Transit Center ADA Automatic Door Operator. 
Seconded by Director Bean. 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

ACTION ITEMS 
21. Resolution 24-18 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Managed Services

Agreement Between the Tillamook County Transportation District and ProCredEx.
a. Director Johnston asked if ProCredEx do recredentialing? FS Bond said no.
b. Director Fiorelli asked if there was going to be cost sharing for this service and

FS Bond said no that CPCCO will pay for themselves.

49



Motion by Director Johnston to Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Managed 
Services Agreement Between the Tillamook County Transportation District and 
ProCredEx. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat. 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Vice Chair Adler and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

22. Staff Comments/Concerns:
General Manager Vitulli: Stated that the Dialysis Clinic in Tillamook still does not
have a start date. With patients using Dial-A-Ride the drivers are taking them out of
Tillamook County and it is lessening our capacity to provide other DAR for County
residents. Thanked everyone and happy holidays.

Operations Superintendent Reed: Reiterated his concerns of the OCVA Service Pilot
Proposal. Shares GM Vitulli’s statements that it will duplicate what TCTD is already
doing and will confuse our customers. When the program stops after the summer the
customers will expect that it will continue, and TCTD will be blamed for not
continuing the program. The rides proved for Dialysis Clinic patients went from two
people to 17 people now, and that we are doing everything we can to continue
providing transportation services for those people. Continued training for our drivers
is led by our Operations Coordinator Cristel Scott with snow chains and other
training. Merry Christmas as it is coming early.

Finance Supervisor Bond: Agreed with OS Reed that Christmas is coming early.

Brokerage Manager Deputy: None.

Admin Assistant Brown: Thanked everyone for coming and have a great holiday.

23. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:

Chair Johnson: Absent.

Vice Chair Adler: Absent.

Dir. Hanenkrat: Stated that the Board of Directors needs to discuss filling the vacant
seat.

Dir. Johnston: Stated that we keep improving. Stated to Cathy that are seeing
financial improvements and that a policy in place would help, and can assist if
needed.

Dir. Bean: Agreed with Director Hanenkrat about discussing the vacant Board seat.

50



Dir. Fiorelli: Asked how we arrived at the fare rates for Ordinance 2. 

24. Adjournment: Board Secretary Bean adjourned the meeting at 7:57 pm.

These minutes were approved this 15th day of January 2025. 

ATTEST: 

     Jonathan Bean, Board Secretary      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

51



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager ) 
to Execute ODOT Section 5304  ) 
Grant Agreement No. 35707 )  RESOLUTION NO. 25-01 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5304 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, which grant is memorialized in ODOT Grant 
Agreement No. 35707; and 

WHEREAS, ODOT allocated funding to the District to provide financial support for 
general public transportation services in the State of Oregon to conduct long-term 
planning activities; and 

WHEREAS, the financial support will be directed toward planning activities 
performed internally by District staff or hiring a consultant to update the Transit 
Development Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 
Manager to execute ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35707 in the amount of $180,000 on 
behalf of the District to provide continued financial support for general public 
transportation services in the TCTD service area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute ODOT Grant 
Agreement No. 35707 in the amount of $180,000 on behalf of the Tillamook County 
Transportation District, to provide continued financial support for general public 
transportation services in the TCTD service area between December 16, 2024 and 
December 31, 2026.  

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of January 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

52



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35707

Planning   5305

Page 1 of  21

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division, hereinafter referred to as 
"State," and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient," 
and collectively referred to as the "Parties."

AGREEMENT
1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the later of December 16, 2024

or the date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable
law. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any expenditures incurred before the Effective Date of
this Agreement. Unless otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement
shall be available for Project Costs incurred after the Effective Date of this Agreement and on
or before December 31, 2026 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available for any
expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents.  This Agreement consists of this document and the following
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A:  Project Description and Budget

Exhibit B:  Financial Information

Exhibit C:  Subagreement Insurance Requirements and Recipient Insurance
Requirements

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and Cooperative
Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit Administration
Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.332(b), may be accessed at
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx, Oregon Public Transit
Information System (OPTIS), as the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement,
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control.  The precedence of
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence
to lowest precedence:  Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit
B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match.  The total project cost is estimated at $225,001.00
("Project Costs").  In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall
provide Recipient an amount not to exceed $180,000.00 (the "Grant Funds") for eligible costs
described in Section 6.a. hereof.  Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs
as described in Exhibit A. Recipient will be responsible for all Project Costs not covered by
the Grant Funds.

4. Project.  The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the project described in Exhibit A (the
"Project") and shall not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any
changes to the Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant
to Section 11.a hereof.

5. Progress Reports.  Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later than
45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period.  Reporting periods are July through
September, October through December, January through March, and April through June.
Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into the Oregon Public
Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at https://www.oregon.gov/
odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx.  If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be sent

53



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 2 of  21

to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov.  Reports shall include a statement of revenues and 
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and 
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be 
necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements. 

6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.
a. Disbursement Generally.  State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out

the Project, up to the Grant Funds amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement
described in Section 9 of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are not
excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as a
result of financial review or audit.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that is
acceptable to and approved by State.  Recipient must submit its final request for
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

c. Recovery of Grant Funds.
i. Recovery of Misexpended Funds or Nonexpended Funds. Any Grant Funds disbursed

to Recipient under this Agreement that are either (i) disbursed but unexpended
as of the Expiration Date ("Unexpended Funds") or (ii) expended in violation or
contravention of one or more of the provisions of  this Agreement ("Misexpended
Funds") must be returned to State. Recipient shall return all Misexpended Funds
to State no later than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return
all Unexpended Funds to State within 15 days after the earlier of expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

ii. Recovery of Funds upon Termination. If this Agreement is terminated under either
Section 10(a)(i) or Section 10(a)(v) below, Recipient shall return to State all funds
disbursed to Recipient within 15 days after State's written demand for the same.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient.  Recipient represents and warrants to State
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under the
laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has full
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval

54



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 3 of  21

of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or 
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient 
of this Agreement.

b. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation.  Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor
accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment.  Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred,
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes.

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties 
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.
a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper

and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State,
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition,
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents,
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

b. Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents,
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, including, without
limitation, records relating to capital assets funded by this Agreement, the Grant Funds
or the Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required
by other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date.
If there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall
retain the records until the questions are resolved.

c. Expenditure Records.  Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds
disbursed by State under this Agreement.  Recipient shall create and maintain all
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

d. Audit Requirements.
i. If Recipient expends $750,000 or more in federal awards during the Recipient's

fiscal year, the Recipient must have a single or program-specific audit conducted
for that year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F (Audit
Requirements). Recipient, if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own
expense submit to State, Public Transportation Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite

55



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 4 of  21

3, Salem, Oregon, 97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov, a copy 
of, or electronic link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the 
funds expended under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, 
the annual audit of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of 
Recipient responsible for the financial management of funds received under this 
Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall indemnify, save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of
any audits or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the
funds expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that
any audit costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or
abuse are ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between
Recipient and State.

This Section 8 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.
9. Recipient Subagreements; Procurements; conflicts of interest

a. Subagreements.  Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement
to name State as a third-party beneficiary of Recipient's subagreement with the
contractor and to name State as an additional or "dual" obligee on contractors'
payment and performance bonds.

iii. Recipient shall provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement, as well as
any other purchasing or contracting documentation, upon request by State. This
paragraph 9.a.iii. shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

iv. Recipient must report to State any material breach of a term or condition of a
subagreement within ten (10) days of Recipient discovering the breach.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance
manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.html

c. Subagreement indemnity; subrecipient insurance

i. Recipient's subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and
its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims,
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys'
fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260,
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of  the other party to Recipient's subagreement
or any of such party's officers, agents, employees or subcontractors
("Claims"). It is the specific intention of the Parties that the State shall,
in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by the other party to
Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all Claims.

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's
subrecipient(s), contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively
"Subrecipients"), nor any attorney engaged by Recipient's
Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State or any
agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative
of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written
consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at any time at
its election, assume its own defense and settlement in the event that

56



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707
 

Page 5 of  21

it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited from defending 
State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's 
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that 
it is in the best interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to 
pursue claims it may have against Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects 
to assume its own defense.

iii. Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that 
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain 
insurance requirements provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Recipient may 
specify insurance requirements of its contractor(s) above the minimum insurance 
requirements specified in Exhibit C. Recipient shall verify its contractor(s) meet the 
insurance requirements in Exhibit C.

d. Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services 
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including 
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in 
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. All applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their 
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

ii. All procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition;

iii. Procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state 
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of 
locally controlled licensing requirements);

iv. Construction, architectural and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act 
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C.125. 

e. Conflict of Interest. Recipient's public officials shall comply with Oregon's government 
ethics laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as those laws may be subsequently amended.

10. Termination
a. Termination by State.  State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 

written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established 
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any 
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the 
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal; 
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure 
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of 
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the 
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient.  Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon 
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be 
established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

i. The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to 
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 

57



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707
 

Page 6 of  21

such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at 
least ten days' notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the 
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms 
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions
a. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written 

instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.
b. Contribution.

i. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging 
a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State 
or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified 
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and 
deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with 
respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense 
of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own 
choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.

ii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third Party 
Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would be if joined in the 
Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of 
the Recipient on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in 
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other 
relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand 
and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among 
other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon 
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole 
liability in the proceeding.

iii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third 
Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or would be if joined 
in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion 
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and 
of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of 
State on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, 
the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to 
correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines 
or settlement amounts. Recipient's contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

c. Indemnification.
i. Subject to any limitations imposed by State law and the Oregon Constitution, 

Recipient agrees to the following contract-related indemnification for all projects 
authorized under this Agreement:

58



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 7 of  21

ii. Where Recipient contracts for services or performs project management for a
project, Recipient shall accept all responsibility, defend lawsuits, indemnify, and
hold State harmless, for all contract-related claims and suits. This includes but is
not limited to all contract claims or suits brought by any contractor, whether arising
out of the contractor's work, Recipient's supervision of any individual project or
contract, or Recipient's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

Sections 11.b and 11.c shall survive termination of this Agreement.
d. Insurance. Recipient shall meet the insurance requirements within Exhibit C.
e. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute

arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

f. Responsibility for Grant Funds.  Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient's breach of the
conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmless and indemnify State for an
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received
under this Agreement.

g. Duplicate Payment.  Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or
any other party, organization or individual.

h. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  State and Recipient are the only Parties to this
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the
this Agreement.

i. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this subsection. Any communication
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

j. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles
of conflicts of law.  Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon.  In no event

59



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 8 of  21

shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense 
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on 
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any 
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE 
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND 
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

k. Compliance with Law.  Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation
as described in Exhibit D.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

l. Independent Contractor.  Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State.  Recipient has no right or authority
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way.  State cannot and
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except
as specifically set forth in this Agreement.  Recipient is responsible for determining the
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project.  Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the
contrary.

m. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term
or provision held to be invalid.

n. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart.

o. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein
regarding this Agreement.  The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

p. Survival. The following provisions survive termination of this Agreement: Sections 6.c.,
8 and 11.

60



Page 9 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this 
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number 
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of 
Transportation to administer programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which 
delegates the authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation 
Division Administrator.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

61



Page 10 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707
 
Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its
 
 
By  
(Legally designated representative)

 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
By  
 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

 
By  
Recipient's Legal Counsel
 
Date  
 
 
Recipient Contact:
Brian Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com
 
State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th St SE
Salem, OR 97302
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

 State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation
 
By  
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator
 
Date  
 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

 
By Arla Miller

 
Date 12/13/2024

 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

 
 

N/A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us

62



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

 

Page 11 of  21

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget
 
Project Description/Statement of Work  
 
Project Title: 5304 Tillamook County Transportation District 35707
Planning

 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-23-0717-01 Item #1: Short Range Transportation Planning

$225,001.00 $180,000.00 $45,001.00 State
Sub Total $225,001.00 $180,000.00 $45,001.00

 

Grand Total $225,001.00 $180,000.00 $45,001.00
 

 

The requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and all other
applicable federal environmental laws (e.g., the Endangered Species Act, the Clean
Water Act, the National Historic Preservation Act) apply to all projects that receive FTA
funds (directly or through the State). The process of addressing compliance with NEPA
and all other applicable federal environmental laws is referred to as the environmental
review process. For any project receiving FTA funds, subrecipients are responsible for
coordinating with ODOT prior to incurring any costs or conducting any project-related
activities to confirm requirements for complying with the environmental review
process. The subrecipient is responsible for submitting all documentation required to
comply with the environmental review process to ODOT for approval by the FTA.

The following activities cannot proceed until the FTA concurs in writing that the
environmental review process is complete per 23 CFR 771.113(a)(1): 
- final design activities (design beyond 30%);
- property acquisition (includes purchase discussions with property owners that imply
or are explicitly binding);
- purchase of construction materials (including EV chargers and bus shelters) or
rolling stock, 
- project construction activities (including construction, alteration, or repair [including
dredging, excavating, and painting] of buildings, structures, or other real property). 

Proceeding with any of these activities prior to FTA concurrence that the
environmental review process is complete may deem the entire project ineligible to
receive federal funding.

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides funding for the following activities (collectively, the "Project"): Planning
to be done internally by staff or hiring a contractor/consultant to perform the planning exercise
of the Transportation Development Plan update. The work is Long-term Transit Planning (ALI#
44.23.01) 

2. TASKS and SCHEDULE

Recipient, in coordination with its regional transit coordinator, will conduct a procurement for a
planning consultant where sufficient planning capacity exists, to produce a plan that includes the
following elements:

63



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 12 of  21

Recipient's Deliverables/Tasks and Schedule 
Milestones dates for each task: 
- Start Date: January 1, 2025
- RFP/IFB Issue Date: January 31, 2025
- Contract Award Date:  February 15, 2025
- Initial Delivery Date: February 28, 2026
- Final Delivery Date: March 31, 2026
- Contract Completion Date: June 30, 2026

a) TASK ONE: Needs Assessment
a. Identify any transportation needs not being met
b. Identify populations and locations needing transportation
c. Assess travel patterns, including origins and destinations
d. Assess first and last mile connections
e. Assess the type of transportation needed

b) TASK TWO: Financial Cost Estimates for Implementing Options and Outcomes
a. Determine the funds needed to improve the system
b. Determine the cost of new services that can be implemented immediately
c. Determine the service that will require long-term financial planning
d. Produce marketing materials
e. Identify fund source(s)

c) TASK THREE: Implementation Plan
The implementation plan, timelines and milestones for completion of tasks:
a) Project organization and coordination
b) Data collection and analysis; mapping.
c) Identify existing conditions of the district
d) Identify and evaluate the needs of the district (service gap analysis/needs assessment).
e) Conduct public involvement process and agency coordination effort to gather and document
feedback. Form a project advisory committee to advise the project.
f) Identify anticipated growth and future transit demand by evaluating population and
employment growth patterns.
g) Develop future funding analysis that includes a forecasted operating budget and projected
cost analysis.
h) Develop future service alternatives that includes a framework for evaluating alternatives
based on various criteria.
i) Address current and future fare policies, catalogue fleet and facility needs/improvements, and
assess transit system technologies.
j) Develop recommendations to define the districts vision, strategies, financial plan, and
monitoring program.

d) TASK FOUR: Public Participation Documentation
Public participation can be in the form of surveying, public meetings, and meetings with
stakeholder groups. Participation may include the following: transportation providers, riders,
social and governmental stakeholders, and representatives of Title VI populations (i.e., low-
income and minority groups, veterans, seniors and individuals with disabilities.)

Documentation of public participation could include survey results, meeting minutes, media
content, reports, advertisements and other visual and written forms of community engagement.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCH FUNDING

Sources of funding that may be used as Recipient's matching funds for this Agreement include
local funds; Statewide Transportation Improvement Formula Funds; service contract revenue,
advertisement and other earned income; cash donations; and verifiable in-kind contributions
integral to the project budget. In-kind contributions claimed as matching funding must be
reported to State. Recipient may not use passenger fares as matching funding.
In-Kind/Volunteer 
2 CFR Part 200.306 provides that a subrecipient may provide in-kind contributions toward the
local share provided the subrecipient formally documents the value of each non-cash share, and

64



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 13 of  21

if this value represents a cost that would otherwise be eligible under the project. The net project
cost of the project for which the donated goods, service, or property is credited must include the
value of any in-kind contributions in the net project cost of that project to the extent it is used
as local match. In-kind contributions must be noted in this agreement prior to execution and will
be noted in the FTA agreement. 

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all products, services, and vendor
charges. In-house charges must be documented showing time specifically associated with the
project. In addition, Recipient must provide a summary of the work performed to date pursuant
to this Agreement in each agency periodic report.  Photographs of the planning process are
encouraged to memorialize the achievement of project deliverables, if applicable. 
Vendor invoices must be attached and include:
- Be legible
- Match the amount requested for reimbursement
- Include a description of the service (hours, rate, quantity of service)
- Include the date(s) of the service
- Include the agency providing the service
- Subrecipients should not attach invoices that are not directly related to the expenses that are
requested on the reimbursement request document.

Recipient will submit a draft or final plan, as appropriate, before final payment will be made by
State. 

65



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

Page 14 of  21

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:

Federal Program Federal Funding Agency CFDA Number Total Federal Funding
49 U.S.C. 5305 U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Transit Administration
915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA  98174

20.515 (5304) $180,000.00

Administered By
Public Transportation Division
555 13th St SE
Salem, OR  97302

66



Page 15 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

EXHIBIT C

Subagreement Insurance Requirements

1.GENERAL.
1. a. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of
local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under
TYPES AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL"
COVERAGE, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE
before performance under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in
full force throughout the duration of the subagreement.  The insurance must be provided
by insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance
and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to State.  Recipient
shall not authorize work to begin under subagreements until the insurance is in full force.
Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued compliance with the insurance requirements on
an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the
subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with the insurance requirements and shall
take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.  In no event shall Recipient permit
work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the contractor is not in compliance
with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier" means a subagreement
in which the Recipient is a Party.

2. TYPES AND AMOUNTS.
a. WORKERS COMPENSATION.
All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027,
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance
coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under
ORS 656.126(2).  The coverage shall include Employer's Liability Insurance with limits not
less than $500,000 each accident. Contractor shall require compliance with these
requirements in each of its subcontractor contracts.

b. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY.
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering
bodily injury and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability,
products and completed operations, and contractual liability coverage. When work to be
performed includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge,
trestle, track, roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the
Contractual Liability - Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial
General Liability policy.
Amounts below are a minimum requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence. 

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

c. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY.

Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor's business-related automobile use 
covering all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Amount 
below is a minimum requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

67



Page 16 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance 
(with separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

d. EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the
required limits of insurance.

e. ADDITIONAL INSURED.
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon
Transportation Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their
respective officers, members, agents and employees" as an endorsed Additional
Insured but only with respect to the contractor's activities to be performed under the
Subagreement. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance
and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO 
Form CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations 
and ISO Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed 
operations. Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of 
Insurance and must be acceptable to the Recipient.

f. "TAIL" COVERAGE.
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional
liability insurance or pollution liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either "tail"
coverage or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the
continuous "claims made" coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subagreement,
for a minimum of twenty-four (24) months following the later of : (i) the contractor's
completion and Recipient's acceptance of all Services required under the Subagreement or,
(ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subagreement. Notwithstanding
the foregoing twenty-four (24) month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain
"tail" coverage and if the maximum time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in
the marketplace is less than the twenty-four (24) month period described above, then the
contractor may request and State may grant approval of  the maximum "tail " coverage
period reasonably available in the marketplace.  If State approval is granted, the contractor
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably
available in the marketplace.

3. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE.
The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30) days' written notice to Recipient before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal 
of the required insurance coverage(s). The Recipient shall immediately notify State of 
any change in insurance coverage.

4. CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE.
Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of insurance for all required 
insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an 
attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the 
policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended 
reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Recipient Insurance Requirements

68



Page 17 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

1. GENERAL.
a. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
Recipient shall obtain at Recipient's expense the insurance specified in this exhibit prior to
performing under this Agreement and shall maintain it in full force and at its own expense
throughout the duration of this Agreement, as required by any extended reporting period
or continuous claims made coverage requirements, and all warranty periods that apply.
Recipient shall obtain the following insurance from insurance companies or entities that
are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of
Oregon and that are acceptable to Agency. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory
with any other insurance and self-insurance, with the exception of Professional Liability and
Workers' Compensation. Recipient shall pay for all deductibles, self-insured retention and
self-insurance, if any.

b. INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW.
Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by State under this Agreement
and to provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and State.

2. TYPES AND AMOUNTS.
a. WORKERS COMPENSATION.
All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027,
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for
those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).
Recipient shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these
requirements. If Recipient is a subject employer, as defined in ORS 656.023, Recipient shall
also obtain employers' liability insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 each
accident. If Recipient is an employer subject to any other state's workers' compensation
law, Contactor shall provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for its employees as
required by applicable workers' compensation laws including employers' liability insurance
coverage with limits not less than $500,000 and shall require and ensure that each of its out-
of-state subcontractors complies with these requirements.

b. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY.
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering
bodily injury, death, and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury
liability, products and completed operations and contractual liability coverage.  When work
to be performed includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property,
bridge, trestle, track, roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide
the Contractual Liability - Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial
General Liability policy. Commercial General Liability Insurance shall not be less than the
following amounts as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence. 

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

c. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY.
Automobile Liability Insurance covering business-related automobile use on all owned, non-
owned or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Automobile Liability Insurance shall
not be less than the following amount as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance 
(with separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

d. EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.

69



Page 18 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the 
required limits of insurance.

e. ADDITIONAL INSURED.
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon
Transportation Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their
respective officers, members, agents and employees"  as an endorsed Additional
Insured but only with respect to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this
Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and
self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO 
Form CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations 
and ISO Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed 
operations. Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of 
Insurance and must be acceptable to the Recipient.

f. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION.
Recipient shall waive rights of subrogation which Recipient or any insurer of Recipient
may acquire against the department or State of Oregon by virtue of the payment of any
loss. Recipient will obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the State has received a
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the Recipient or the Recipient's insurer(s).

g. CONTINUOUS CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE:
If any of the required liability insurance is on a claims made basis and does not include an
extended reporting period of at least 24 months, then Recipient shall maintain continuous
claims made liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous claims made
coverage is on or before the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months
following the later of:

i. Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all project work required under the
Agreement, or
ii. State or Recipient termination of this Agreement, or

iii. The expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement.

3. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE.
Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written notice to State before cancellation 
of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the 
required insurance coverage(s).

4. CERTIFICATE(S) AND PROOF OF INSURANCE.
Recipient shall provide to State Certificate(s) of Insurance for all required insurance before 
delivering any Goods and performing any Services required under this Agreement. The 
Certificate(s) shall list the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as a Certificate 
holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured. The Certificate(s) shall also include all required 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by 
this Agreement. If excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet the minimum insurance 
requirement, the Certificate of Insurance must include a list of all policies that fall under 
the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of insurance State has the right to request copies 
of insurance policies and endorsements relating to the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement.

5. STATE ACCEPTANCE.

70



Page 19 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

All insurance providers are subject to State acceptance.  If requested by State, Recipient 
shall provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents 
and related insurance documents to State's representatives responsible for verification of the 
insurance coverages required under this Exhibit C. 

71



Page 20 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

EXHIBIT D

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and

Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any, 
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances 
available at www.transit.dot.gov.  The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be 
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master 
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by 
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from 
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the 
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement 
and the funds described in Exhibit A:
1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. §

2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21,
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex,
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement.
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26
and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may,
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. The requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), including 23 CFR Part 771,
apply to all projects that receive federal funds (whether directly or through the State) or that
need a federal approval or permit. The process of addressing compliance with NEPA and all
other applicable federal laws relating to the environment, parks, or historic resources (e.g.,
the Endangered Species Act, the Clean Water Act, the National Historic Preservation Act,
Section 4(f) of the U.S. Department of Transportation Act) is referred to as the environmental
review process. Recipient shall coordinate with the State and FTA prior to incurring any
costs, making any expenditures, or conducting any project-related activities to confirm
requirements for complying with the environmental review process. Recipient is responsible
for submitting all documentation required to comply with the environmental review process
to the State for approval by the FTA.

Until the FTA concurs that the environmental review process is complete and in compliance
with 23 CFR 771.113(a)(1), the following activities cannot proceed: final design activities
(design beyond 30%), property acquisition (includes purchase discussions with property
owners that imply or are explicitly binding), purchase of construction materials or rolling
stock, or project construction activities (including, but is not limited to, any ground

72



Page 21 of  21

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35707

disturbance or facility modification). This award is contingent on the FTA's concurrence that 
the environmental review process is complete, and the project has complied with NEPA and 
related federal laws. Any project expenses incurred prior to completion of the environmental 
review process will not be eligible for reimbursement and may cause the entire project to be 
ineligible to receive federal funding.

5. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient,
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems
appropriate.

6. Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in federal funds, other than Indian
tribes, must certify to State that they have not and will not use federal funds to pay for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal department or
Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with
obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other federal award. If non-federal
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking
a congressional earmark.

73



TO: Board of Directors 
FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
DATE: January 15, 2025 
SUBJECT: STIF Formula Funding Recommendation – FY 2025-2027 Biennium 

OVERVIEW 
The Oregon Department of Transportation Public Transportation Division’s Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Fund Formula Fund (STIF Formula) solicitation was released on August 27, 2024, with 
submittals due no later than January 16, 2025. STIF Formula Funds are intended to expand, improve, 
and maintain public transportation services in Oregon. 

This solicitation will be for the FY 2025-2027 biennium, which covers the period from July 1, 2025 to 
June 30, 2027. Available funds for this period are forecasted at $243.4 million Statewide. There are 
no match requirements for STIF Formula funds. 

At its inception, the STIF program was funded solely by the Oregon "transit tax," which is a state 
payroll tax equal to one-tenth of 1 percent. The STIF program is also funded by ID card fees, non-
highway gas tax, and cigarette tax revenues now that it has been consolidated with the Special 
Transportation Fund (STF), effective July 1, 2023. The total funding amount will be estimated 
annually, and actual revenues will vary based on transit tax collections. 

Eligible STIF Formula Fund recipients: Only a Qualified Entity (QE) may submit a STIF Plan. A Qualified 
Entity is a county in which no part of a Mass Transit District or Transportation District exists, a Mass 
Transit District, a Transportation District or an Indian Tribe, per OAR 732-040-0005. A Public 
Transportation Service Provider or any non-profit, private for-profit, or public entity is eligible to 
receive STIF Formula funds through a qualified entity as a sub-recipient under the Qualified Entity's 
STIF Plan. 

Eligible STIF Formula Fund projects: STIF funding may be used to finance investments and 
improvements in public transportation services, except for light rail capital expenses. STIF may be 
used for public transportation purposes that support the effective planning, deployment, operation, 
and administration of public transportation programs. 

STIF monies are not intended to supplant local funding sources to maintain existing services. A STIF 
Plan that proposes to use STIF funding to replace local funding to maintain an existing service may 
result in denial of the funding request. 

74



BACKGROUND / DETAILS 
1. TCTD is a designated Qualified Entity and eligible to apply for these funds.
2. TCTD’s forecasted allocations are: $586,829 for FY 2026 / $611,008 for FY 2027.
3. The District proposes the expenditure of approved funds for the following projects:

i. Continuation of Enhanced Dial-A-Ride Services
ii. Continuation of Reduced Fare Program

iii. Continuation of Fixed Route Service Enhancements
iv. Capital/Operating/Planning Contingency (COP Contingency)

4. The Marie Mills Center, Inc. and TCTD will continue its collaboration with the inclusion of
MMCI’s subrecipient application for Operating Support for MMCI Transportation Services in
the amount of $50,862.

5. These needs and strategies are documented in the District’s adopted plans listed below:
i. Coordinated Transportation Plan, March 20, 2024.

6. An estimated breakdown of each project’s funding distribution is found in the following table:

*Figures could change depending on STIF Carry Forward amounts.

STAKEHOLDER ACTION 
On January 14, 2025, the TCTD Transportation Advisory Committee convened to consider the STIF 
Formula Fund Plan for the FY 2025-2027 biennium and recommend that the TCTD Board of Directors 
approve TCTD’s STIF Formula Fund Plan for the FY 2025-2027 biennium and authorize the General 
Manager to proceed with application submittal. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the TCTD Board of Directors approve the STIF Formula Fund Plan for the FY 2025-
2027 biennium and authorize the General Manager to proceed with application submittal.    

STIF Plan Project Total* 
Enhanced DAR $244,349 
Reduced Fare Program $88,800 
Fixed Route Enhancements $300,000 
COP Contingency $513,826 
MMCI Operating Support $50,862 
STIF Carry Forward $200,000 
Total $1,397,837 

75



Introduction 
ODOT has completed an update to the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) allocation estimate. We will 
continue to update forecasts as we receive revised economic data. This update to the STIF forecast reflects the 
consolidation with the Special Transportation Fund designated by Senate Bill 1601. Revenues from cigarette taxes, ID 
card fees, and the non-highway gas tax are included with the payroll tax revenues. This forecast includes payroll shares 
and populations for 2022 and reflects expected revenues to be received. 

Estimate Assumptions 
ODOT can distribute only the revenue it receives, which may be more or less than this estimate, up to each individual 
Qualified Entity’s (QE) approved STIF Plan funding limit for STIF Formula (i.e. “plan maximum”). Further, ODOT is 
prohibited from distributing funds to a QE that does not have an OTC approved STIF formula plan. Distributions typically 
represent tax collections from two quarters prior; for example, the July distribution (FY 25 Q1) is largely comprised of taxes 
collected from January through March (FY 24 Q3). Updated estimates for the Formula, Discretionary, and Intercommunity 
Discretionary funds for FY 24-25 (23-25 biennium) and forecasts for FY 26-27 are summarized in the table below. 

The tables summarize the estimated Formula fund revenues available to each QE based on the date of distribution by 
fiscal year. There are tables for the consolidated program, the population based formula, and payroll based formula. 
Population based formula funds must be dedicated to transportation services for older adults and individuals with 
disabilities.  

Estimate Calculation Method 
• Fees and other taxes grow at a nominal historic rate,
• Department of Revenue collection and administration costs are deducted from the gross revenue,
• PTD Program administration costs and projects of statewide significance are deducted per ORS 184.758,
• The result is multiplied by 90% to determine the projected Formula Fund net total,
• The projected net total is multiplied by the QE payroll shares resulting in QE revenue estimates,
• QE payroll shares are calculated using the most current annual payroll data from the Oregon Employment

Department, with adjustments made to ensure each QE receives the minimum allocation

NOTE:  The remaining ten percent of STIF funds collected is dedicated to the Discretionary Fund (five percent), 
Intercommunity Discretionary Fund (four percent), and the Technical Resource Center (one percent).  

STIF Fund 
Estimate for 

FY 24-25 
Forecast for 

FY 26-27 
Formula (distributions) $230.9 M $243.4 M 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund 
Allocation Estimate, August 2024  

76



Qualified Entity FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027
Baker County 279,745$         278,496$         288,899$         299,124$         
Basin Transit Service District 1,100,251$      1,094,546$      1,132,523$      1,179,224$      

In district 864,864$         860,131$         889,063$         927,802$         
Out of district Klamath County 235,387$         234,415$         243,460$         251,422$         

Benton County 2,204,112$      2,191,973$      2,265,415$      2,364,780$      
Burns Paiute Tribe 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Columbia County 622,282$         619,271$         641,552$         666,198$         
Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Community of Oregon 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Coos County 1,065,831$      1,060,267$      1,096,918$      1,142,463$      
Coquille Indian Tribe 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Cow Creek Band of Umpqua Tribe of Indians 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Crook County 496,154$         493,561$         510,613$         531,833$         
Curry County 320,436$         318,934$         330,588$         342,880$         
Deschutes County 4,952,639$      4,925,109$      5,089,195$      5,314,539$      
Gilliam County 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Grant County Transportation District 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Harney County 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Hood River County Transportation District 635,246$         631,790$         653,116$         681,402$         
Jefferson County 356,165$         354,442$         367,193$         381,301$         
Josephine County 1,358,618$      1,351,611$      1,398,649$      1,456,000$      
Klamath Tribes 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Lake County 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Lane Transit District 7,998,793$      7,955,347$      8,224,130$      8,579,755$      

In district 7,297,269$      7,257,103$      7,500,341$      7,829,120$      
Out of district Lane County 701,524$         698,244$         723,788$         750,634$         

Lincoln County 834,420$         830,056$         858,722$         894,437$         
Linn County 2,401,920$      2,389,094$      2,470,623$      2,575,609$      
Malheur County 568,469$         565,456$         584,833$         609,500$         
Morrow County 382,985$         381,095$         394,670$         410,141$         
Rogue Valley Transportation District 4,635,075$      4,609,921$      4,765,753$      4,971,650$      

In district 4,151,337$      4,128,242$      4,265,706$      4,454,753$      
Out of district Jackson County 483,738$         481,679$         500,047$         516,897$         

Salem Area Mass Transit District 9,786,233$      9,732,510$      10,059,238$   10,498,997$   
In district 6,665,796$      6,628,223$      6,847,130$      7,154,691$      
Out of district Marion County 2,288,092$      2,276,048$      2,354,357$      2,452,948$      
Out of district Polk County 832,345$         828,239$         857,750$         891,357$         

Sherman County 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Sunset Empire Transportation District (Clatsop County) 850,740$         846,125$         874,732$         912,511$         
Tillamook County Transportation District 475,081$         472,619$         489,024$         509,173$         
Tri County Metropolitan Transportation District 65,021,516$   64,647,700$   66,755,896$   69,815,801$   

In district 61,690,712$   61,334,700$   63,329,904$   66,244,072$   
Out of district Clackamas County 2,491,543$      2,478,197$      2,562,612$      2,671,859$      
Out of district Multnomah County 71,280$            70,931$            73,466$            76,324$            
Out of district Washington County 767,981$         763,872$         789,911$         823,543$         

Umatilla County 1,483,196$      1,475,286$      1,525,670$      1,590,412$      
Umpqua Public Transportation District (Douglas County) 1,880,213$      1,870,344$      1,934,798$      2,015,586$      
Union County 478,157$         475,677$         492,176$         512,482$         
Wallowa County 194,376$         298,152$         211,952$         211,952$         
Wasco County 553,126$         550,180$         568,982$         593,096$         
Wheeler County 194,376$         194,376$         211,952$         211,952$         
Yamhill County 1,900,748$      1,890,695$      1,955,570$      2,037,862$      
Totals Statewide 115,752,167$ 115,225,897$ 119,120,710$ 124,277,988$ 

Program Totals (Population + Payroll)

District totals may not add up due to rounding.  77



Qualified Entity FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027
Baker County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Basin Transit Service District 181,028$         181,028$         190,763$         190,763$          

In district 102,345$         102,345$         107,849$         107,849$          
Out of district Klamath County 78,683$           78,683$            82,914$           82,914$            

Benton County 248,236$         248,236$         261,585$         261,585$          
Burns Paiute Tribe 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Columbia County 137,152$         137,152$         144,527$         144,527$          
Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Community of Oregon 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Coos County 169,332$         169,332$         178,438$         178,438$          
Coquille Indian Tribe 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Cow Creek Band of Umpqua Tribe of Indians 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Crook County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Curry County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Deschutes County 517,036$         517,036$         544,841$         544,841$          
Gilliam County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Grant County Transportation District 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Harney County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Hood River County Transportation District 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Jefferson County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Josephine County 229,736$         229,736$         242,090$         242,090$          
Klamath Tribes 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Lake County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Lane Transit District 998,776$         998,776$         1,052,488$     1,052,488$      

In district 825,677$         825,677$         870,080$         870,080$          
Out of district Lane County 173,099$         173,099$         182,407$         182,407$          

Lincoln County 131,428$         131,428$         138,495$         138,495$          
Linn County 335,412$         335,412$         353,449$         353,449$          
Malheur County 82,928$           82,928$            87,387$           87,387$            
Morrow County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Rogue Valley Transportation District 582,252$         582,252$         613,564$         613,564$          

In district 430,197$         430,197$         453,332$         453,332$          
Out of district Jackson County 152,055$         152,055$         160,232$         160,232$          

Salem Area Mass Transit District 1,130,172$     1,130,172$      1,190,950$     1,190,950$      
In district 611,869$         611,869$         644,774$         644,774$          
Out of district Marion County 347,460$         347,460$         366,145$         366,145$          
Out of district Polk County 170,843$         170,843$         180,030$         180,030$          

Sherman County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Sunset Empire Transportation District (Clatsop County) 107,116$         107,116$         112,876$         112,876$          
Tillamook County Transportation District 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Tri County Metropolitan Transportation District 4,791,360$     4,791,360$      5,049,030$     5,049,030$      

In district 4,329,173$     4,329,173$      4,561,987$     4,561,987$      
Out of district Clackamas County 341,174$         341,174$         359,521$         359,521$          
Out of district Multnomah County 15,030$           15,030$            15,837$           15,837$            
Out of district Washington County 105,983$         105,983$         111,682$         111,682$          

Umatilla County 208,832$         208,832$         220,062$         220,062$          
Umpqua Public Transportation District (Douglas County) 290,008$         290,008$         305,604$         305,604$          
Union County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Wallowa County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Wasco County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Wheeler County 78,468$           78,468$            82,687$           82,687$            
Yamhill County 280,936$         280,936$         296,044$         296,044$          
Totals Statewide 12,383,440$   12,383,440$   13,049,368$   13,049,368$   

POPULATION Formula Breakout

District totals may not add up due to rounding.  78



Qualified Entity FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027
Baker County 201,277$            200,028$           206,212$            216,437$            
Basin Transit Service District 919,223$            913,518$           941,760$            988,461$            

In district 762,519$            757,786$           781,214$            819,953$            
Out of district Klamath County 156,704$            155,732$           160,546$            168,508$            

Benton County 1,955,876$        1,943,737$       2,003,830$        2,103,195$        
Burns Paiute Tribe 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Columbia County 485,130$            482,119$           497,025$            521,671$            
Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Community of Oregon 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Coos County 896,499$            890,935$           918,480$            964,025$            
Coquille Indian Tribe 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Cow Creek Band of Umpqua Tribe of Indians 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Crook County 417,686$            415,093$           427,926$            449,146$            
Curry County 241,968$            240,466$           247,901$            260,193$            
Deschutes County 4,435,603$        4,408,073$       4,544,354$        4,769,698$        
Gilliam County 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Grant County Transportation District 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Harney County 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Hood River County Transportation District 556,778$            553,322$           570,429$            598,715$            
Jefferson County 277,697$            275,974$           284,506$            298,614$            
Josephine County 1,128,882$        1,121,875$       1,156,559$        1,213,910$        
Klamath Tribes 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Lake County 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Lane Transit District 7,000,017$        6,956,571$       7,171,642$        7,527,267$        

In district 6,471,592$        6,431,426$       6,630,261$        6,959,040$        
Out of district Lane County 528,425$            525,145$           541,381$            568,227$            

Lincoln County 702,992$            698,628$           720,227$            755,942$            
Linn County 2,066,508$        2,053,682$       2,117,174$        2,222,160$        
Malheur County 485,541$            482,528$           497,446$            522,113$            
Morrow County 304,517$            302,627$           311,983$            327,454$            
Rogue Valley Transportation District 4,052,823$        4,027,669$       4,152,189$        4,358,086$        

In district 3,721,140$        3,698,045$       3,812,374$        4,001,421$        
Out of district Jackson County 331,683$            329,624$           339,815$            356,665$            

Salem Area Mass Transit District 8,656,061$        8,602,338$       8,868,288$        9,308,047$        
In district 6,053,927$        6,016,354$       6,202,356$        6,509,917$        
Out of district Marion County 1,940,632$        1,928,588$       1,988,212$        2,086,803$        
Out of district Polk County 661,502$            657,396$           677,720$            711,327$            

Sherman County 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Sunset Empire Transportation District (Clatsop County) 743,624$            739,009$           761,856$            799,635$            
Tillamook County Transportation District 396,613$            394,151$           406,337$            426,486$            
Tri County Metropolitan Transportation District 60,230,156$      59,856,340$     61,706,866$      64,766,771$      

In district 57,361,539$      57,005,527$     58,767,917$      61,682,085$      
Out of district Clackamas County 2,150,369$        2,137,023$       2,203,091$        2,312,338$        
Out of district Multnomah County 56,250$              55,901$             57,629$              60,487$              
Out of district Washington County 661,998$            657,889$           678,229$            711,861$            

Umatilla County 1,274,364$        1,266,454$       1,305,608$        1,370,350$        
Umpqua Public Transportation District (Douglas County) 1,590,205$        1,580,336$       1,629,194$        1,709,982$        
Union County 399,689$            397,209$           409,489$            429,795$            
Wallowa County 115,908$            219,684$           129,265$            129,265$            
Wasco County 474,658$            471,712$           486,295$            510,409$            
Wheeler County 115,908$            115,908$           129,265$            129,265$            
Yamhill County 1,619,812$        1,609,759$       1,659,526$        1,741,818$        
Totals Statewide 103,368,727$   102,842,457$   106,071,342$   111,228,620$   

PAYROLL Formula Breakout

District totals may not add up due to rounding.   79



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

ADOPTING THE FY 2025-2027 STIF ) 
FORMULA FUND PLAN AND ) 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL ) 
MANAGER TO SUBMIT THE FY ) RESOLUTION NO. 25-02 
2025-2027 STIF FORMULA FUND PLAN ) 
APPLICATION ) 

WHEREAS, with the passage of House Bill 2017 in 2017, the Oregon Legislature 
established the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to expand, improve, 
and maintain public transportation services in Oregon, as described in the rules in OAR 
Chapter 732, Divisions 040, 042, and 044; and 

WHEREAS, to be eligible to receive STIF Formula Funds, Qualified Entities shall 
prepare and submit a STIF Formula Fund Plan (STIF Plan), to the Oregon Transportation 
Commission (OTC); and 

WHEREAS, STIF funds shall be allocated to Qualified Entities conditioned upon 
OTC approval of each Qualified Entity's STIF Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the allocation estimate of STIF Formula Funds is comprised of a 
Population-Based Formula and Payroll Based Formula, respectively; and 

WHEREAS, an advisory committee appointed by the governing body of each 
Qualified Entity shall advise and assist the governing body in prioritizing plans or projects 
to be funded from the STIF Formula Funds; and 

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is a Qualified Entity 
based on its status as a transportation district; and 

WHEREAS, TCTD has developed a STIF Plan, known as the FY 2025-2027 STIF 
Plan, which proposes the use of STIF Formula Funds for public transportation projects 
in fiscal years 2026 and 2027; and 

WHEREAS, the FY 2025-2027 STIF Plan contains the elements required by the 
abovementioned rules in OAR Chapter 732, Divisions 040, 042, and 044; and 

WHEREAS, the TCTD Advisory Committee, duly appointed by the TCTD Board 
of Directors, has advised and assisted TCTD in prioritizing plans and projects to be 
funded from STIF Formula Funds; and 

80



WHEREAS, the FY 2025-2027 STIF Plan includes projects identified in TCTD's 
local transportation plans, progress on which has been contingent on the receipt of 
additional funding; and 

WHEREAS, the TCTD Advisory Committee reviewed and approved a FY 2025-
2027 Subrecipient Application for an award of $50,862, as submitted by public 
transportation service provider Marie Mills Center, Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, the FY 2025-2027 STIF Plan seeks up to $1,397,837 of available STIF 
Formula Funds; and 

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors has considered the FY 2025-2027 STIF 
Formula Fund Plan, and finds it in the best interest of the District to adopt it. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors that: 

the Board adopts the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan and authorizes the 
General Manager to submit TCTD's application for STIF Formula Funds, together 
with all required documentation, to the Oregon Department of Transportation. 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of January 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
    Mary Johnson, Board Chair           Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

81


	1 Board Packet Cover 1.15.2025.pdf
	Agenda 1.15.2025 FINAL.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	CONSENT
	ACTION ITEMS
	16. Resolution 25-01 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute ODOT Section 5304 Grant Agreement No. 35707 (Pgs. 52-73)
	17. Resolution 25-02 Adopting the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan and Authorizing the General Manager to Submit the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan Application (Pgs. 74-81)
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	Binder1.pdf
	COMBINED Board Packet_1.15.2025.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	COMBINED Board Packet.pdf
	COMBINED Board Packet
	7 ORDINANCE  TCTD Fare Policy 12.2024 CLEAN DRAFT.pdf
	8 Nov 2024 Financials.pdf
	9 NOV 2024 Performance Report.pdf
	TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance�November 2024
	YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE�YTD COMPS
	DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE�YTD COMPS
	PASSENGER CATEGORIES�YTD COMPS
	TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP�November 2024  &  November 2023

	10 2025.01.10 NWOTA Meeting Agenda.pdf
	10.2 2024.12.12 NWOTA Minutes.pdf
	14 12.18.2024 Minutes FINAL_BV 01102025.pdf
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	John Cline, Citizen
	Brad Bingenheimer, Auditor from Singer Lewak
	San SunOwen, Care Oregon
	Tyler Hellner
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Added Item 7: Audit presentation; added Item 19: Motion to Authorize the General Manager to Approve Vendor Proposal and Execute Repair to Vehicle Storage Facility Security Gate; added Item 20: Motion to Authoriz...
	5. Public & Guest Comments: John Cline stated that he thought last year was bad but now we must use attorneys to solve problems. Everyone is having to do multiple jobs, not just their own. Just wanting to let the Board know that we are still having a ...
	6. Executive Session: None.
	7. Audit Presentation: Brad Bingenheimer, from our audit firm, Singer Lewak, presented the Audit for year ending June 30, 2023.
	Director Johnston asked FS Bond were most of the deficiencies identified from the audit addressed and will there be a difference for the next one. FS Bond stated that we are already almost seven months into the new fiscal year and hopefully it will be...
	Director Fiorelli thanked FS Bond for the work she was doing and suggested that SDAO handbook would possibly have a Financial Policy that could help for procedures. What FS Bond has done so far has come a long way.
	Director Johnston said that she agreed with Director Fiorelli.
	8. First Reading of Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance No. 2; Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing an Effective Date.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	9. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the September 2024 and October 2024 financials included in the Board packet pages 6-56.
	b. Provided miles driven: 90687. Just for a mental picture Santa Claus travels 99,500 miles on Christmas Eve.
	c. Mileage reimbursement trips provided 61,152 miles driven. Volunteers drove 22,033.
	d. San SunOwen from Care Oregon shared information regarding 2025 CareOregon Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation Agreement.
	13. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in Board packet pages 67-68 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	14. Miscellaneous: None.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	21. Resolution 24-18 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Managed Services Agreement Between the Tillamook County Transportation District and ProCredEx.
	a. Director Johnston asked if ProCredEx do recredentialing? FS Bond said no.
	b. Director Fiorelli asked if there was going to be cost sharing for this service and FS Bond said no that CPCCO will pay for themselves.
	Motion by Director Johnston to Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Managed Services Agreement Between the Tillamook County Transportation District and ProCredEx. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	22. Staff Comments/Concerns:
	23. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:
	24. Adjournment: Board Secretary Bean adjourned the meeting at 7:57 pm.
	These minutes were approved this 15th day of January 2025.
	ATTEST:

	16 25-01 ODOT Section 5304 Agreement No 35707.pdf
	16.1 ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35707_TDP Update.pdf


	10.1 2024.11.08 NWOTA Minutes
	12 GM Report_January 2025


	9.1 November 2024 Monthly Performance Report.pdf
	17 FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Plan_COMBINED.pdf
	17 Board_2025-2027 STIF Formula Memo
	17.1 STIF-Allocation-Estimate-Aug2024
	Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund
	Allocation Estimate, August 2024

	17.2 25-02 Adopting STIF Formula Plan and Authorizing Application for STIF Formula Fund Plan





